
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Governors of the City of London 
Freemen's School 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 1 OCTOBER 2013 

Time: 11.00 am 

Venue: CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL, ASHTEAD PARK, SURREY, 
KT21 1ET 

 
Members: Stuart Fraser (Chairman) 

Deputy John Bennett (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Michael Bramwell, (co-opted) 
(External Member) 
Roger Chadwick 
Deputy Robin Eve 
Brian Harris 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Michael Hudson 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Sir Clive Martin, (co-opted) 
(External Member) 
Andrew McMillan, (co-opted) 
(External Member) 
 

Douglas Mobsby, (co-opted) (External 
Member) 
Hugh Morris 
Graham Packham 
Alderman Dr Andrew Parmley 
Judith Pleasance 
Elizabeth Rogula 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson, (ex-officio) (Ex-
Officio Member) 
Deputy Sir Michael Snyder, (ex-officio) 
(Ex-Officio Member) 
Chris Townsend, (co-opted) 
Philip Woodhouse 
Gillian Yarrow, (co-opted) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Gemma Stokley  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1427 
gemma.stokley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served at the conclusion of the meeting  

 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 

 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 3 June 2013. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. CHARITIES ADMINISTERED IN CONNECTION WITH (ICW) THE CITY OF 

LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL - 2012/13 REPORT AND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

 

 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 20) 

 
5. CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL BURSARY FUND - 2012/13 REPORT 

AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 21 - 38) 

 
6. REVENUE OUTTURN 2012-13 
 

 Joint report of the Chamberlain and the Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s 
School. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 39 - 48) 

 
7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 To consider the resolution excluding the Public in respect of those items containing 
exempt information:- 
 
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Section 12A if the Local 
Government Act. 
 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
10. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2013. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 49 - 56) 

 
11. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS 
 

 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 57 - 58) 

 
12. REVIEW OF FOUNDATION SCHOLARSHIP SCHEME 
 

 Joint report of the Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s School and the 
Chamberlain. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 59 - 104) 

 
13. MASTER PLAN - GATEWAY 6 PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 Report of the City Surveyor (TO FOLLOW). 
 

 For Decision 
 

14. BURSAR'S REPORT 
 

 Report of the Bursar of the City of London Freemen’s School.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 105 - 120) 

 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

15. HEADMASTER'S REPORT 
 

 Report of the Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s School (copy attached). 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 121 - 138) 

 
16. HEAD OF JUNIOR SCHOOL REPORT 
 

 Report of the Head of the Junior School, City of London Freemen’s School (copy 
attached). 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 139 - 144) 

 
17. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 

Part 3 - Confidential Agenda 
 
19. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES 
 

 To agree the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2013. 
 

 For Decision 
20. BOARDING HOUSE STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT 
 

 Joint report of the Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s School and the 
Director of Corporate HR (TO FOLLOW). 
 

 For Decision 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL 
Monday, 3 June 2013  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Governors of the City of London Freemen's 
School held at City of London Freemen's School, Ashtead Park, Surrey, KT21 1ET 

on Monday, 3 June 2013 at 11.00 am 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy John Bennett (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Robin Eve 
Brian Harris 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Michael Hudson 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Sir Clive Martin 
 

Andrew McMillan 
Douglas Mobsby 
Graham Packham 
Judith Pleasance 
Chris Townsend 
Gillian Yarrow 
 

 
Officers: 
Gemma Stokley - Town Clerk’s Department 

Chrissie Morgan - Director of Human Resources 

Steve Telling - Chamberlain's Department 

Mark Lowman - City Surveyor 

Philip MacDonald - Headmaster, City of London Freemen's 
School 

Vicky Buckman - Deputy Head, City of London 
Freemen's School 

Richard Alton - Deputy Head (Academic), City of 
London Freemen’s School 

Mark Beach - Head of Junior School, City of London 
Freemen's School 

 
The Deputy Chairman (in the Chair) welcomed several new Governors to their 
first Board meeting. He introduced Mr McMillan and Mrs Yarrow as new co-
opted Governors, Alderman Hewitt as one of the Board’s new Aldermen and Mr 
Packham and Mrs Pleasance as new Common Council Governors. 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absences were received from Stuart Fraser (Chairman), Michael 
Bramwell (co-opted), Roger Chadwick, Hugh Morris, Alderman Dr Andrew 
Parmley, Elizabeth Rogula, Deputy Dr. Giles Shilson (ex-officio), Deputy Sir 
Michael Snyder (ex-officio) and Sue Williams (Bursar, City of London 
Freemen’s School). 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
Deputy Eve declared a standard, non-pecuniary interest stating that he was 
continuing to serve as President of the Old Freemen’s Association (OFA). 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Councillor Chris Townsend declared a standard, non-pecuniary interest stating 
that he was currently appointed and serving as an elected representative of 
Mole Valley District Council. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary if the last meeting held on 29 April 2013 were 
considered and approved as a correct record. 
 
MATERS ARISING 
Appointment of Bursary and Sub Committees (page 4) – The Deputy 
Chairman highlighted that vacancies still existed on the Bursary Committee and 
the Board’s two Sub Committees.  
 
The Town Clerk clarified that there were 2 vacancies remaining on the Bursary 
Committee and 1 on each Sub Committee.  
 
The Deputy Chairman explained that the Board’s Sub Committees both met on 
the same day. He encouraged any Governor who might be interested in joining 
any of these Committees to contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further 
information.  
 
Old Freemen’s Association (OFA) Clubhouse (page 4) – In response to a 
question, the City Surveyor reported that his Chief Officer was currently in the 
process of arranging a visit to the newly refurbished Clubhouse. 
 
Governors were also encouraged to visit the Clubhouse in the near future to 
see the improvements for themselves.  
 

4. CHILD PROTECTION POLICY  
The Board considered a joint report of the Town Clerk and the Headmaster of 
the City of London Freemen’s School reviewing the School’s Child Protection 
Policy incorporating additional guidance from the Department for Education on 
safeguarding and staff recruitment.  
 
The Deputy Chairman highlighted that this policy was common to all three City 
Schools with the exception of references to Surrey as the Freemen’s School 
local authority.  
 
The Deputy Head went on to report that very little had changed since the Board 
had last reviewed the policy. She went on to highlight some changes regarding 
terminology (social care vs. social services etc.) and the replacement of the old 
CRB checks with the DBS checks which were to be portable between 
organisations.  
 
The Board were informed that it was recommended that the phrase ‘Child 
Protection’ be replaced with ‘Safeguarding’ and that this document should 
therefore be entitled ‘Safeguarding Policy’ in the future if the other two City 
Schools were in agreement. 
 

Page 2



A Governor requested that all acronyms be spelt out in the first instance in 
future Policies.  
 
In response to a question regarding paragraph 8.2 of the policy, the 
Headmaster confirmed that all allegations of abuse were dealt with in this way. 
 
In response to a question regarding paragraph 3.1.7, the Deputy Head stated 
that absence for two consecutive days for those with a child protection plan 
already in place would be referred to Surrey Children’s Social Care.  
 
Mrs Littlechild, the Board’s nominated Child Protection Governor, confirmed 
that she had reviewed this Policy alongside the Deputy Head and was content 
that this was satisfactory. 
 
A Governor commented that, if this were to be reviewed annually, it would be 
useful to see the changes from one year to the next clearly highlighted. 
 
RESOLVED – That, Governors approve the revised Child Protection policy.  
 

5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were no questions.  
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no additional, urgent items of business for consideration. 
 

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of Section 12A if the Local Government Act. 
 
 Item No.     Exemption Paragraph(s) 
     8       1, 3 & 4 
     9          3 & 4 
    10       1, 3 & 4 
    11             1 
    12             1 
    13             - 
    14             - 
 

8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2013 were considered 
and approved as a correct record.  
 

9. MASTER PLAN UPDATE  
The City Surveyor provided Governors with a verbal update on the Master Plan 
works.  
 
 
 

Page 3



10. BURSARY UPDATE  
The Board received a Bursary Update report form the Headmaster of the City of 
London Freemen’s School. 
 

11. HEAD OF JUNIOR SCHOOL REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Head of the Junior School providing 
Governors with an overview of events in the Junior School since the last Board 
meeting. 
 

12. HEADMASTER'S REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Headmaster relative to various School 
issues including Staffing, Prize Day, Health & Safety and Recent and 
Forthcoming Events.  
 

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were no questions in the non-public session.  
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
Matters concerning a future ISI Inspection, the School’s Maintenance contract 
and the Teaching Staff Pay Award (confidential, Governors only) were raised.  
 

 
The meeting ended at 12.35 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Gemma Stokley  
tel. no.: 020 7332 1427 
gemma.stokley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 4



 

Committee(s): Date(s): Item no. 

Board of Governors City of London 
Freemen’s School  

Tuesday, 1 October 
2013 

 

 

Subject: 

Charities Administered in connection with (ICW) The 
City of London Freemen’s School - 2012/13 Report 
and Financial Statements 

Public 

 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

For Information 

 

 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with a copy of the 
2012/13 Report and Financial Statements for the Charities 
Administered in connection with (ICW) The City of London 
Freemen’s School (charity number: 312120). 

The key points for the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: 

During the year ended 31 March 2013 total funds increased by 
£13,291 to £151,908 (2011/12: total funds decreased by £188,618 to 
£138,617).  This £13,291 comprised the following:- 

i) a net gain on investments of £10,409 (2011/12: a net loss on 
investments of £287); 

 
ii) income of £10,332 (2011/12: £15,001) which comprised investment 

income of £3,922 (2011/12: £8,186) and voluntary income of £6,410 
(2011/12: £6,815); partly offset by 
 

iii) expenditure of £7,450 (2011/12: £7,221) relating to 257 book prizes 
(2011/12: 275 book prizes); and 

 

During the previous year the Charity Commission approved the transfer of 
five scholarship and prize funds totalling £196,111 to the City of London 
Freemen’s School Bursary Fund.  This transfer is the main reason for the 
significant reduction in funds during 2011/12. 
 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that Members receive this report for information.  

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 

Contacts:   
Steven Reynolds 
steven.reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
Sarah Port 
sarah.port@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Committee(s): Date(s): Item no. 

Board of Governors City of London 
Freemen’s School  

Tuesday, 1 October 
2013 

 

 

Subject: 

City of London Freemen’s School Bursary Fund - 
2012/13 Report and Financial Statements 

Public 

 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

For Information 

 

 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with a copy of the 
2012/13 Report and Financial Statements for the City of London 
Freemen’s School Bursary Fund (charity number: 284769).   

  The key points for the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: 

During the year ended 31 March 2013 total funds increased by 
£74,237 to £676,595 (2011/12: total funds increased by £314,216 to 
£602,358).  This £74,237 comprised the following:- 

i) investment income of £18,769 (2011/12: £12,995);  

ii) a net gain on investments of £55,669 (2011/12: a net gain of 
£13,504);  

iii) voluntary income of £23 (2011/12: £100,000).  In the prior year 
the Board agreed a transfer of £100,000 from the City of London 
Freemen’s School revenue account to the City of London 
Freemen’s School Bursary Fund to ensure sufficient resources 
for the provision of bursaries; partly offset by 

iv) expenditure of £224 on bursary administration costs - no bursary 
awards were made during the year (2011/12: bursary 
administration costs of £897 and one bursary award of £7,497). 

During the previous year the Charity Commission approved the 
transfer of five scholarship and prize funds totalling £196,111 from 
the Charities Administered ICW the City of London Freemen’s 
School to the Bursary Fund.  This transfer, together with the £100,000 
referred to in iii) above, are the main reasons why the increase in 
funds was significantly higher in 2011/12 than in 2012/13. 

 
       

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that Members receive this report for information.  

 

 

 

Contacts:   
Steven Reynolds 
steven.reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
Sarah Port 
sarah.port@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Committee(s): Date(s): Item no. 

Board of Governors City of London 
Freemen’s School 

Tuesday, 1 October 
2013 

 

 

Subject: Revenue Outturn 2012/13 Public 

Report of: The Chamberlain 

                   The Headmaster 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This report compares the 2012/13 revenue outturn with the budget for 
the year.  Before any transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund, total net 
income during the year was £1,575,000 compared to a net income 
budget of £1,443,000, representing an increase in net income of 
£132,000 (9.1%).  This better than budget position was mainly due to a 
reduction across various supplies and services expenditure headings, 
coupled with increases in income largely in relation to the sale of 
school lunches following increased take-up. 
 
The 2002 funding guidelines report recommended that the General 
Reserve balance should not exceed 5% of the original estimate of fee 
income, equating to £592,000 for 2012/13, with any excess transferred 
to the Capital Reserve Fund.  In accordance with these guidelines the 
transfer to the Capital Reserve was £1,561,000.  Following this 
transfer, and after taking account of expenditure on the Masterplan 
works funded from the reserve during the year, the balance in the 
Capital Reserve Fund as at 31 March 2013 was £4,467,478 (31 March 
2012: £5,180,917).  This balance will also be used to part fund the 
school’s ‘Masterplan’. 
 
The total of all the School’s funds (unrestricted, designated and 
restricted) was £8,027,445 at 31 March 2013 as set out in Annex B, a 
reduction of £689,500 compared with a year earlier; this reduction is 
largely attributable to the funding of the Masterplan referred to above. 
 

      Recommendations 

It is recommended that this revenue outturn report for 2012/13 is noted. 
 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 39



Main Report 

2012/13 Revenue Budget Position compared to Outturn 

 
1. Overall, net revenue income for 2012/13 was £1,575,000 compared to an 

agreed net income budget of £1,443,000, representing an increase in net 
income of £132,000 before allowing for any transfer to the Capital Reserve 
Fund.  The table below provides a detailed comparison between the budget 
and outturn. 

TABLE 1 

CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN’S SCHOOL 

Analysis of Service Expenditure 

 

Budget 

 

 

2012/13 

£’000 

Actual 

 

 

2012/13 

£’000 

Variation 

Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

2012/13 

£’000 

EXPENDITURE    

Employees 7,589 7,565 (24) 
Premises Related Expenses (see note i) 1,544 1,546 2 
Transport Related Expenses 79 78 (1) 
Supplies & Services (see note ii) 1,925 1,837 (88) 
Staff Subsidy 

Headmaster’s Scholarship Awards 

Scholarship Subvention Awards 

Match Funding Awards 

271 

3 

472 

29 

272 

0 

472 

21 

                  1 

(3) 

- 

(8) 

Support Services (Annex A) 

Capital Charges (Annex A) 

626 

1,412 

638 

1,412 

                 12  

- 

Total Expenditure 13,950 13,841 (109) 

    

INCOME    

School Meals and Tuck Shop 

School tuition fees 

Other tuition fees 

Boarding fees 

Registration and Examination fees 

Other (see note iii) 

Interest 

City Support (Annex A) 

(386) 

(11,678) 

(228) 

(451) 

(137) 

          (171) 

           (50) 

(2,292) 

(402) 

(11,676) 

(220) 

(443) 

(136) 

          (191) 

           (54) 

(2,294) 

(16) 

                2 

8  

8 

1 

(20) 

(4) 

(2) 

Total Income (15,393) (15,416) (23) 

    

TOTAL NET INCOME BEFORE 

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE 
(1,443) (1,575) (132) 

    

Transfer To Capital Reserve 

 

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE/ (INCOME) 

AFTER TRANSFER TO CAPITAL 

RESERVE 

             1,429 

 

                (14) 

            1,561 

 

              (14) 

(132) 

 

- 

BALANCE B/FWD 1 APRIL (578) (578) - 

BALANCE C/FWD 31 MARCH (592) (592) - 

 

(i) Premises Related Expenses – includes energy costs, rates, water services, cleaning and 

domestic supplies and the contribution to the Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements 

Fund. Page 40



 

(ii) Supplies and Services – equipment, furniture, materials, books, uniforms, printing, 

stationary, professional fees, grants & subscriptions, advertising and the contribution 

to the Foundation Scholarship Fund
.

 

 

(iii) Other income – hire of facilities, administration charges, freedom fees, and rent. 

 
2. The 2002 funding guidelines report recommended that the General Reserve 

balance should not exceed 5% of the original estimate of fee income, 
equating to £592,000 for 2012/13, with any excess transferred to the 
Capital Reserve Fund.  In accordance with these guidelines the budget 
assumed a transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund of £1,429,000.  However, 
due to the school benefiting from additional net income of £132,000 during 
the year, the transfer to the Capital Reserve was increased to £1,561,000.  
Following this transfer, and after taking account of expenditure on the 
Masterplan works funded from the reserve during the year, the balance in 
the Capital Reserve Fund as at 31 March 2013 was £4,467,478 (31 March 
2012: £5,180,917). 

3. The main reasons for the variations summarised in Table 1, resulting in 
additional net income of £132,000, were:- 

A reduction in expenditure of £109,000 mainly due to:- 

i) lower than anticipated supplies and services expenditure of £88,000 
including: 

• £54,000 from equipment, furniture and materials, including lower 
expenditure of £20,000 on equipment maintenance and the hire of 
equipment due to the careful management of resources; £7,000 of 
the provision for the new ‘enrichment’ venture was not required – 
this venture is aimed at enhancing opportunities for students, 
particularly in terms of out-of school activity, to contribute to their 
cognitive development; and a number of smaller underspends 
totalling £27,000 across numerous departments as repairs and 
replacements were not required; 

• £22,000 from books as a consequence of greater use of Information 
Technology as teaching methodologies adapt; 

• £15,000 from advertising and promotion due to greater use of the 
School’s website and a reduced requirement for paper based 
promotion; and 

ii) a reduction in employee expenses of £24,000 largely due to the   
provision for maternity cover not being fully required. 

Additional income of £23,000 principally due to increased take-up of 
school meals. 

Page 41



Unrestricted, Designated and Restricted Funds 

4. A summary of unrestricted, designated and restricted funds showing the 
movements in 2012/13 is attached at Annex B.  Overall, total funds have 
decreased by £689,500 to £8,027,445.  The main movements are:- 

i) a reduction of £713,439 in the Capital Reserve Fund to £4,467,478 
(31 March 2012: £5,180,917) which is being used to part fund the 
school’s ‘Masterplan’.  The reduction is principally due to:- 

• the planned capital expenditure of £2,367,418 on Phase 1 of the 
School’s ‘Masterplan’; partly offset by 

• the contribution from revenue of £1,561,221 as set out above; and 

• interest earnings of £92,758. 

ii) a reduction in the Foundation Scholars Fund of £23,848.  This is due 
to expenditure on  Foundation Scholarships of £40,051 and Boarding 
House improvements of £33,621 exceeding the income received from 
Freedom Fees and interest of £49,824; 

iii) a reduction in the School Fund of £17,504 following the purchase of 3 
new pianos plus small donations towards pathway lighting for St. 
Giles churchyard, snooker table repairs and Jubilee coins for the 
children.  

These reductions were partly offset by; 

iv) income of £474,867 received by the General Scholarship Fund 
exceeding the value of Scholarships awarded by £24,071.  At 31 
March 2013 the fund had a positive balance of £173,305 (31 March 
2012: positive balance of £149,234); and 

v) two new funds were established during the year; 

• the School Committee Fund (balance £3,570) is for use by the 
pupil based School Council which is chaired by the Deputy Head.  
The balance comprises unspent budgets provided to the School 
Council so that it can instigate small projects.  The use of a 
separate fund will enable the School Council to save for larger 
initiatives; and 

• the Development Fund (balance £14,094) captures the net income 
raised by the Development officer from events such as fireworks 
displays, parties in the park and sales of memorabilia.  The fund 
will be used for projects and/or to provide additional bursaries. 

Contacts: 

Steve Telling               Sarah Port 
Steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk      Sarah.port@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Page 42



Annex A 

 SUPPORT SERVICES AND CAPITAL CHARGES 

AND 

CITY SUPPORT  

 
  

 

 
Budget 

 

 

2012/13 

£’000 

Actual 

 

 

2012/13 

£’000 

Variation 

Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

2012/13 

£’000 

Support Services and Capital Charges 

Information Systems (IS) 

Staff Insurance 

Other Insurance 

Chamberlain 

Comptroller & City Solicitor 

Town Clerk 

City Surveyor 

Miscellaneous - see note i 

Corporate & Democratic Core (CDC)   

City Surveyor’s Employee Recharge 

Capital Financing Costs 

 

94 

47 

60 

83 

31 

108 

33 

17 

54 

99 

1,412 

 

120 

50 

54 

85 

14 

114 

35 

14 

46 

106 

1,412 

 

26 

          3 

              (6) 

2 

(17) 

6 

2 

(3) 

(8) 

7 

- 

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES AND 

CAPITAL CHARGES 

 

2,038 

 

2,050 

 

     12 

 

 

 

 

City Support 

Scholarships 
     General - see note ii 

     2.5% Match Funding - see note iii 

Total Scholarships 

 

Support Services and Capital Charges 

   Information Systems 

   Staff Insurance 

   Support Services 

   PP2P savings – see note iv 

   Capital Financing Costs 

Total Support Services and Capital Charges 

 

Other 

   Listed Building Subvention 

Total Other 

 

 

(472) 

(29) 

(501) 

 

 

(94) 

(47) 

(327) 

      111 

(1,387) 

(1,744) 

 

 

(47) 

(47) 

 

 

(472) 

(21) 

(493) 
 

 

(120) 

(50) 

(308) 

111 

(1,387) 

(1,754) 
 

 

(47) 

(47) 

 

 

- 

8 

8 

 

 

(26) 

(3) 

19 

- 

- 

(10) 

 

 

- 

-  

TOTAL CITY SUPPORT  (2,292) (2,294) (2) 

Page 43



Annex A 

 SUPPORT SERVICES AND CAPITAL CHARGES 

AND CITY SUPPORT  

Notes: 

i)       Various services including corporate training, corporate printing, occupational 

health, union costs and environmental and sustainability sections. 

 

ii)       City’s Cash finances the equivalent of 34 full fee scholarships per annum – 6 full 
fee equivalent (FFE) in the junior school, 2 FFE in years 7 and 8 and 26 FFE in 

the Senior School. 

 

iii)       The funding guidelines, as agreed by Policy & Resources Committee on 19 
September 2002, provided for the City to match fund external bursary funds raised 

from that date onwards up to a cap of 2.5% of tuition fee income. 

 

iv)       As a result of new contracts procured by the City’s PP2P Team, expenditure by 
City Schools should generally be reduced.  However, as agreed by the Chief 

Officer’s Group in January 2012, such savings are to benefit the City Corporation 

centrally to help achieve balanced revenue budgets on City’s Cash over the 

medium term.  In order to move these savings from the Schools to the centre, an 

adjustment has been made to the City’s support to the Schools.  This will leave the 

Schools in a neutral resource position as the reduction in costs from the PP2P 

savings will be offset by a reduction in income through the City’s Support.  

Should a contract procured by the PP2P Team result in an increase in a School’s 

costs then a compensatory increase will be made to the City’s support to retain the 

neutrality principle. 

 

 

Page 44



Annex B

Balance 

1st April 

2012

Interest Income Expenditure

Transfer 

Between 

Funds

Balance 31st 

March 

2013

Unrestricted

Revenue Surplus (578,205) (53,711) (15,376,787) 13,337,816 -               (2,670,887)

Repairs & Maintenance - - - - 495,000 495,000

Vehicle Replacement - - - - 22,000 22,000

Capital Reserve Fund - - - - 1,561,221 1,561,221

(578,205) (53,711) (15,376,787) 13,337,816 2,078,221 (592,666)

Designated

Drama Refurbishment Fund (585) (11) -               -               -               (596)

Music Refurbishment Fund (4,250) (82) (3,043) -               -               (7,375)

Foundation Scholars Fund (82,643) (1,346) (48,478) 73,672 -               (58,795)

General Scholarship Fund (149,234) (2,867) (472,000) 450,796 -               (173,305)

Repairs & Maintenance (2,072,112) (35,996) -               538,910 (495,000) (2,064,198)

I/T (53) (1) -               -               -               (54)

Retirement (78,021) (1,490) -               10,852 -               (68,659)

Vehicle purchase (668) -               -               14,805 (22,000) (7,863)

Junior School (2,333) (46) (4,434) 2,249 (4,564)

Capital Reserve (5,180,917) (92,758) -               2,367,418 (1,561,221) (4,467,478)

Headmaster's Fund Raising (1,265)          (24)               -               -               -               (1,289)

Projects/Events (53,637)        (1,030)          -               -               -               (54,667)

School Committee Funds -                   (4)                 (3,566) -               -               (3,570)

CLFS Development Fund -                   (4)                 (18,300) 4,210           -               (14,094)

School Fund (27,318) (304) (4,698) 22,506 -               (9,814)

(7,653,036) (135,963) (554,519) 3,485,418 (2,078,221)   (6,936,321)

Restricted

Livery Match Funding (151,172) (2,754) (21,172) 13,963 -               (161,135)

Livery scholarships & Prizes (53,583) -               (18,550) 15,759 -               (56,374)

(204,755)      (2,754)          (39,722)        29,722         -                   (217,509)

Endowment

2-18 St Brides (250,250)      -                   -                   -                   -                   (250,250)

Sale of land & property (30,699) -                   -                   -                   -                   (30,699)

(280,949) - - - - (280,949)

Totals (8,716,945) (192,428)      (15,971,028) 16,852,956 -                   (8,027,445)   

City of London Freemen's School

2012/13 Movement of Funds

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL

COMPARISON OF 2012/13 REVENUE OUTTURN WITH BUDGET

Annex C

Budget  Actual Variance

INCOME £000 £000 £000

Fees & Charges (Customer and Client Receipts) 13,018 13,035 17 

Investment Income 50 54 4 

Other Income 33 33 0 

City Corporation Support 2,292 2,294 2 

Total Income 15,393 15,416 23 

EXPENDITURE

Employee Expenses (7,589) (7,565) 24 

Premises Related Expenses (1,049) (1,051) (2)

Transport Related Expenses (57) (56) 1 

Supplies and Services (1,925) (1,837) 88 

Staff subsidy and scholarships (775) (765) 10 

Support Services (626) (638) (12)

Capital Charges (1,412) (1,412) 0 

Total Expenditure (13,433) (13,324) 109 

TRANSFERS

Transfer to Repairs and Maintenance Fund (495) (495) 0 

Transfer to Vehicle Replacement Fund (22) (22) 0 

Transfer to the Capital Reserve (1,429) (1,561) (132)

Total Transfers (1,946) (2,078) (132)

NET INCOME 14 14 0 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 69 B

y virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of P
art 1 of S

chedule 12A
of the Local G

overnm
ent A

ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 70

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 101 B

y virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of P
art 1 of S

chedule 12A
of the Local G

overnm
ent A

ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 102

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 103 B

y virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of P
art 1 of S

chedule 12A
of the Local G

overnm
ent A

ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 104

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 121

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 129

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 130

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 137

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Charities Administered in connection with (ICW) The City of London Freemen's School - 2012/13 Report and Financial Statements
	E4 - Freemens School Scholarships 2012-13_FINAL_SIGNED

	5 City of London Freemen's School Bursary Fund - 2012/13 Report and Financial Statements
	E7 - COL Freeman's School Bursary Fund 2012-13_FINAL_SIGNED docx

	6 Revenue Outturn 2012-13
	Copy of Annex B CLFS 2012-13_FINAL 4-9-13
	Copy of Annex C CLFS 2012-13_FINAL 4-9-13

	10 Non-Public Minutes
	11 Report of Action Taken Between Meetings
	12 Review of Foundation Scholarship Scheme
	Annex A Foundation Scholarship Fund_2010-11 to 2016-2017
	Annex B Foundation Scholarship Guidelines 16-07-13
	Annex C Copy of Foundation Scales 16-07-13
	Annex D Bursary Guidelines 16-07-13
	Annex E Example Income Assessment Notes
	Annex F Foundation Scholarship Scale_Cliff Edge 25% 16-07-13
	Annex G Copy of Foundation Scholarship Scale_No Cliff Edge 16-07-13

	14 BURSAR'S REPORT
	15 Headmaster's Report
	Appendix 1 The School Roll Sept 2013
	Copy of Appendix 1 - Vacancies 13 09 2013
	Appendix 2 - Exam results 2013
	Copy of Appendix 2 - U6th Leavers' Destinations 2013
	Appendix 3 -Trips  Visits Sept  13 - July 14

	16 Head of Junior School Report

